Public Document Pack

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CRIME & DISORDER COMMITTEE Town Hall, Main Road, Romford 29 November 2011 (7.30 - 8.55 pm)

Present:

Councillors Ted Eden (Chairman), John Wood (Vice-Chair), Sandra Binion, Denis Breading, David Durant, Roger Evans, Georgina Galpin, Frederick Osborne and Linda Van den Hende

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Becky Bennett

+ Substitute member: Councillor Sandra Binion (for Becky Bennett)

The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency.

46 MINUTES OF THE MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2011 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the amendment of minute 42, last paragraph to "...Chief Inspector Hay ..." not "...Chief Superintendent Hay ..."

47 WORK OF THE TRADING STANDARDS TEAM

At the invitation of the Committee the Trading Standards divisional Manager attended the meeting and delivered a presentation on the Role of Trading Standards in tackling Crime and Disorder. He advised the Committee of a number of current initiatives being undertaken by Trading Standards, these included:

- Problem Oriented Partnerships;
- Scrap metal/motor salvage joint operations (Operation Ram);
- Fireworks/Halloween:
- Cold Calling Zones/distraction burglary/doorstep crime;
- Banking protocol; and
- Underage sales.

The Committee were informed that Trading Standards were carrying out undercover test purchasing, prosecuting offenders, reviewing premises who repeat offend and issuing 48 hour closure notices (Havering was the first authority to use 48 hour closures.). The target was to run 150 test purchases a year. There had been more success late at night with larger groups. The London average for test purchase failures was 17.4% whilst in

Havering it was 20%. This could be explained by the fact that the number of licensed premises in Havering had increased from 400 in 2007 to 570 in 2011.

The Committee were concerned that many test purchase failures occurred late at night when often untrained staff was serving. They **agreed** that the Licensing Committee be asked to consider imposing conditions on premises with late night licences to ensure that either a Designated Premises Supervisor and/or Personal Licence Holder were available on the premises until the premises closed.

The Committee welcomed the work to tackle scrap metal crime and noted that the Operation Ram initiative was being extended to cover all of London.

The Committee **noted** the report and thanked Keith Bush for his presentation.

48 YOUTH OFFENDING TEAM

The Team Manager, Youth Offending Team (YOT) attended the meeting to advise members of progress towards meeting the recommendations of the Core Case Inspection of statutory Youth Offending Work in Havering. He advised the Committee that the Inspectors had examined a representative sample (38 cases) of youth offending cases for the area. Most of the cases inspected were community cases with a small number (9) of custody cases. Most cases involved court orders which commenced with or were transferred to Havering YOT between September 2010 and January 2011. The exception to this sample involved custody cases where the low numbers of available cases meant inspectors had to look at work that was nearly two years old.

They reviewed case records and met case managers to reach a judgment as to how often the Safeguarding, Risk of Harm (to others) and Likelihood of Reoffending aspects of the work were undertaken to a sufficiently high level of quality. This was judged against a 136 point questionnaire used for all Core Case Inspections

The Inspectors judged each of the main categories of the inspection as follows:

- that the Safeguarding aspects of the work were carried out competently 58% of the time.
- that work to keep to a minimum each individual's Risk of Harm to others was undertaken competently 54% of the time
- that work to address the likelihood of reoffending or make each individual less likely to reoffend was undertaken competently well enough 69% of the time.

Within their foreword, Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Probation described this as a disappointing set of findings. However, the inspectors did also note a number of positive aspects to the Team's work. In particular, Inspectors felt that case managers and Youth Offending Service (YOS) managers were keen to develop their practice and had responded positively to the inspection feedback.

A full report was issued which included eight recommendations for improvement, these are attached as Appendix 'A'.

The Committee were informed that an Improvement Plan had been drawn up and agreed by the YOS Local Management Board and this was provided to the Committee with an indication of how well the service was responding to the report.

The Committee asked a number of questions to enable them to assess how well the YOT were responding to the report. They **requested** a report back to the next meeting on 16 February 2012 so that they could be satisfied with progress.

After officers left the meeting the Committee discussed the report and the actions taken to meet the recommendations. They felt that the report had damaged the reputation of the Council and were not convinced that officers had grasped the seriousness of the report. They felt that the Improvement Plan and the work being taken to meet the targets was unsatisfactory.

The Committee **AGREED** to establish a Topic Group to review progress and assess the processes. As part of the work the Topic Group would review the outcome of Core Case Inspections of other London Authorities paying particular attention to neighbouring boroughs and those with similar demographics. A scoping meeting would be held early in the New Year by which time members would have had an opportunity to assess the results of other authorities reviews.

49 UPDATE ON THE POLICE REFORM AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACT 2011

The Committee received a report on the latest position with the implementation of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 in so far as it applied to London. Officers advised the Committee that the current assumption was that secondary legislation would be laid in time for the transition from the Metropolitan Police Authority (MPA) to the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime (MOPC) as a new functional body of the Greater London Authority at the beginning of January 2012.

Unlike Police Authorities, Police and Crime Commissioners (or for London the MOPC) would not be 'responsible authorities' under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and will not be members of Community Safety

Crime & Disorder Committee, 29 November 2011

Partnerships. There was, however, a provision that both organisations should co-operate to reduce crime and disorder and re-offending.

Of concern to the Committee was the transfer of crime and disorder reduction grants to the MOPC who could make grants to any organisation or person in their force area. Members were?

The Committee were advised that the Community Safety Partnership were opening discussions with similar outer London Boroughs in order that a common approach could be taken to the MOPC.

The Committee **noted** the report.

Chairman 16th February 2012

Minute 48
Appendix 'A'

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CORE CASE INSPECTION OF THE STATUTORY YOUTH OFFENDING WORK IN HAVERING.

Changes were necessary to ensure that, in a higher proportion of cases:

- (1) a timely and good quality assessment and plan, using Asset, was completed when the case starts (YOS Manager)
- (2) specifically, a timely and good quality assessment of the individual's vulnerability and *Risk of Harm to others* was completed at the start, as appropriate to the specific case (YOS Manager)
- (3) as a consequence of the assessment, the record of the intervention plan was specific about what would now be done in order to safeguard the child or young person from harm and to minimise any identified *Risk of Harm to others* (YOS Manager)
- (4) sentence plans in custodial cases fully reflect the assessed likelihood of reoffending, identified Risk of Harm to others and, where applicable, victim safety. They then specified who was responsible for the delivery of each intervention and when they would be delivered (YOS Manager)
- (5) the plan of work with the case was regularly reviewed and correctly recorded in Asset with a frequency consistent with national standards for youth offending services (YOS Manager)
- (6) there was regular and effective oversight by management, especially of screening decisions, that was clearly recorded within the case record, as appropriate to the specific case (YOS Manager)
- (7) sufficient attention was given to the safety of victims throughout the course of the sentence (YOS Manager).
- (8) clear arrangements should be in place, that were understood and applied by staff, for all cases that were transferred in or out, or where work was undertaken by or on behalf of another YOS. Such arrangements should include agreement on responsibilities for all relevant aspects of assessment, planning and delivery (YOS Manager).

This page is intentionally left blank